
“Our mission is to maintain the character of our “small town” community while striking an appropriate balance between 
economic development and preservation of our quality of life. We help create a dynamic and vital City by providing quality, 

cost-effective municipal services and by forming partnerships with residents and organizations in the constant pursuit of 
excellence.” 

Page Item STANDING AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call

2. Presentation: Siskiyou Outdoor Recreation Alliance

3. Public Comment:
This time is set aside for citizens to address the City Council on matters listed on the Consent Agenda
as well as other items not included on the Regular Agenda. If your comments concern an agenda item 
noted on the regular agenda, please address the Council when that item is open for public comment. 
Each speaker is allocated three (3) minutes to speak. Speakers may not cede their time. Comments 
should be limited to matters within the jurisdiction of the City. Council discussion or action cannot 
be taken on items not listed on the agenda other than to receive comments. If you have documents 
to present to members of Council, please provide a minimum of seven (7) copies to the Deputy City 
Clerk. 

4. Council and Staff Comments

CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS 
Page 5. Consent Agenda - The City Manager recommends approval of the following Consent Agenda items.

All Resolutions and Ordinances on this agenda, or added hereto, shall be introduced or adopted, as
applicable, by title only, and the full reading thereof is hereby waived.

a. Approval of Minutes: September 9, 2020 Special City Council Meeting, September 14, 2020
Regular City Council Meeting
b. Approval of Disbursements: Accounts Payable, 9/15/2020; Total Gross Payroll and Taxes:

For Period Ending 9/6/2020.

c. Second Reading and Adoption of CCO-20-XX, An Ordinance of the City of Mt. Shasta
Rescinding Municipal Code Chapter 10.45 Regulating Parking Violations

d. Resolution Approving Miscellaneous Bargaining Unit Memorandum of Understanding

e. Resolution for the acceptance of Treasury Management Services from Tri Counties Bank

f. Monthly Financial/Investment Report

Mt. Shasta City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 
Monday, Sep tem b er  28,  20 20; 5:30 p.m. 

Please note that this meeting is being agendized to allow Council Members, Staff, and the public to participate in this 
meeting via ZOOM, pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20. Members of the public may remotely listen 
to and participate in the meeting via the information below: 

Please click the link below to join the meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84480833788 

Or Telephone: US: +1 253 215 8782  or +1 346 248 7799  or +1 408 638 0968  or +1 669 900 6833  or +1 646 876 9923  
Webinar ID: 844 8083 3788 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 1

3-28

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84480833788


Mt. Shasta Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 
Monday, September 28, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

Page 6. Discussion and Possible Action: 1220 Mt. Shasta Boulevard Water Meters

Background: The project applicant, Paul Lennon has submitted plans for a residential development 
with an ADU on a previously developed lot. The plans were approved on May 4, 2020 with the  
exception of the civil sheets, which are still waiting on revisions by his Engineer. He has requested  
Council consideration of requirements to re-locate water meter boxes. 

Report By: Rod Bryan, Public Works Director 

Recommended Council Action: Staff respectfully requests that Council provide direction to staff. 

Page 7. Discussion and Possible Action: Extension to City Manager’s Existing Contract and Term of Service

Background:  The initial term of the City Manager’s contract will expire on September 29, 2020. In  
order to ensure continuation and coordination of the important projects before the City, the City  
Manager is requesting a two (2) year extension to the term of the existing contract. This requested 
two (2) year extension to the Term of the Contract is the only change being requested; all other  
conditions of the Contract remain unchanged. 
Report By: Bruce Pope, City Manager 
Recommended Council Action: Approval of Resolution CCR-20-XX extending the term of the City 
Manager’s Contract to September 29, 2022. 

CITY COUNCIL/STAFF REPORTING PERIOD 

8. Future Agenda Items (Appearing on the agenda within 60-90 days):

a. Discussion and Possible Action: Future of the City Library – 10/12/2020
b. Discussion and Possible Action: Goals and Priorities of the City – 10/26/2020
c. Golden Eagle Charter School: City Street and Alleyway Abandonment – 10/26/2020
d. Short-Term Rental Ordinance – 11/2020
e. Drone Ordinance: First Reading – 11/2020
f. Crisis Management: City’s Approach - TBD
g. No Smoking Signage Funding Options - TBD
h. Presentation by Summit Disposal – TBD

 9. Adjourn
Availability of Public Records: All public records related to an open session item on this agenda, which are not exempt

from disclosure pursuant to the California Public Records Act, that are distributed to a majority of the legislative body will be 
available for public inspection at City Hall located at 305 North Mt. Shasta Blvd., Mt. Shasta, CA at the same time the public 
records are distributed or made available to the members of the legislative body. Agenda related writings or documents 
provided to a majority of the legislative body after distribution of the Agenda packet will be available for public review 
within a separate binder at City Hall at the same time as they are made available to the members of the legislative body. 
The  City of Mt. Shasta  does  not  discriminate on the  basis of race, color, national origin,  sex, religion,  age or disability in  
employment or provision of  services.   In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons requiring 
accommodations for a disability at a public meeting should notify the City Clerk or Deputy City Clerk at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting at (530) 926-7510 in order to allow the City sufficient time to make reasonable arrangements to accommodate 
participation in this meeting. 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 2

29-38

39-48



Mt. Shasta City Council Special Meeting Minutes 

September 9, 2020 

Please note that this meeting was held to allow Council Members, Staff, and the public to participate 
via ZOOM, pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20. 

“Our mission is to maintain the character of our “small town” community while striking an appropriate balance 
between economic development and preservation of our quality of life.  We help create a dynamic and vital City 

by providing quality, cost-effective municipal services and by forming partnerships with residents and 
organizations in the constant pursuit of excellence.” 

STANDING AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call:   At the hour of 3:00 p.m. Mayor John Stackfleth called the meeting to order.
Council Members Present:    Redmond, Collings, Stackfleth, Wagner
Council Members Absent:     Engstrom

2. Discussion and Possible Action: Authorization to Proceed with Rate Study & Council Authorization to
Advertise for Bids for the State Mandated Wastewater Treatment Plant Project

Rod Bryan, Public Works Director – Review of staff report: State Mandated Wastewater Treatment Plant project, 
bid process, funding plan. Review of rate increase needed to complete project, dates for prop 218 process. 
Clarifying questions from Council. 
Paul Reuter, PACE Engineering – Review of factors leading to rate increase including inflation and debt coverage. 
Clarifying questions from Council. 
John Kenny, City Attorney – Review of protest and notification process. 
Alan Pardee – Questions regarding the total increase. 
Council discussion, review of total increase. 
COUNCIL ACTION: Approve Resolution CCR-20-38 Adopting the 2020 Wastewater Utility Rate Study Amendment 
MOTION: Redmond 
SECOND: Collings 
AYES: Redmond, Collings, Wagner, Stackfleth 
NOES: None 
ABSENT: Engstrom 
ABSTAIN: None 
3. Adjourn:  There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 4:00 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted by: Kathryn M. Joyce, Administrative Assistant/Deputy City Clerk 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 3



Mt. Shasta City Council Regular Meeting DRAFT Minutes 

September 14, 2020 

Please note that this meeting was held to allow Council Members, Staff, and the public to participate 
via ZOOM, pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20. 

 
 
 

“Our mission is to maintain the character of our “small town” community while striking an appropriate balance 
between economic development and preservation of our quality of life.  We help create a dynamic and vital City 

by providing quality, cost-effective municipal services and by forming partnerships with residents and 
organizations in the constant pursuit of excellence.” 

 
STANDING AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call:   At the hour of 5:30 p.m. Mayor John Stackfleth called the meeting to order. 
Council Members Present:    Redmond, Collings, Stackfleth, Engstrom, Wagner 
Council Members Absent:     None 

2. Public Comment:   
Dawn Snure – Comments regarding salary survey recently completed by the City, lack of salary increases. 
Concern regarding dispatcher’s current wage range and required skill set. 
Peter Kilkens – Concern regarding police vehicles running in front of the station. 

3. Council and Staff Comments:   
Juliana Lucchesi, City Planner – Comments regarding the Golden Eagle charter school project, participation in the 
Cannabis Control Summit, SB2 funding project, and groundwater meeting. Clarifying questions from Council. 
Barbara Wagner, Councilmember – Comments regarding the City Council meeting process, questions regarding 
the undergrounding of power lines. 

CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS 

4. Consent Agenda:   
COUNCIL ACTION:  Approved the following Consent Agenda items.  All Resolutions and Ordinances on this 
agenda, or added hereto, shall be introduced or adopted, as applicable, by title only, and the full reading thereof 
is hereby waived. 

a. Approval of Minutes: August 24, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting 
 
b. Approval of Disbursements: Accounts Payable, 8/19, 8/26, and 9/8/2020; Total Gross Payroll and 

Taxes: For Period Ending 8/23/2020.  

c. Police Department Report: August 2020 

MOTION TO APPROVE: Stackfleth 
SECOND:    Collings 
AYES:          Redmond, Collings, Stackfleth, Engstrom, Wagner 
NOES:         None 
ABSENT:     None 
ABSTAIN:    None (Councilmember Wagner abstained from the vote on the August 24, 2020 minutes due to 
absence.) 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 4



City of Mt. Shasta Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
Monday September 14, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 

5. Public Hearing:  Parking Citations and Fees Adoption 
Juliana Lucchesi, City Planner – Review of staff report, development of fee schedule. 
Clarifying questions from Council. 
Public Hearing Open: 5:57 p.m. 
Betty Kreeger – Comments regarding handicapped parking areas, wrong way parking, other suggestions. 
Dawn Snure, Dispatch Supervisor – Comments clarifying the ticketing process. 
Public Hearing Closed: 6:01 p.m. 

First Reading of CCO-20-XX “AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MT. SHASTA  
RESCINDING MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 10.45 REGULATING PARKING VIOLATIONS” 

 
6. Fire Department Standby Pay and Update of Memorandum of Understanding 

Muriel Howarth Terrell – Review of staff report, original MOU, standby pay for fire personnel. Review of 
clarification of MOU language and payment to personnel owed. 
Clarifying questions from Council and Council discussion. 
COUNCIL ACTION: Update the Memorandum of Understanding related to standby pay for fire department 
personnel to correctly reflect the intent of the agreement and the required number of personnel for standby 
duty. 
MOTION TO APPROVE: Wagner 
SECOND:   Redmond 
AYES:          Redmond, Collings, Stackfleth, Engstrom, Wagner 
NOES:         None 
ABSENT:     None 
ABSTAIN:    None 
COUNCIL ACTION: Pay fire personnel retroactively for underpayment in relation to standby pay. 
MOTION TO APPROVE: Engstrom 
SECOND:    Redmond 
AYES:          Redmond, Collings, Stackfleth, Engstrom, Wagner 
NOES:         None 
ABSENT:     None 
ABSTAIN:    None 

7. First Reading of CCO-20-XX “AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MT. SHASTA 
RESCINDING MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 10.45 REGULATING PARKING VIOLATIONS” 

Juliana Lucchesi, City Planner – Review of staff report, rescinding Municipal Code chapter.  
COUNCIL ACTION: Approve first reading of Ordinance by title only. 
MOTION TO APPROVE: Redmond 
SECOND:    Wagner 
AYES:          Redmond, Collings, Stackfleth, Engstrom, Wagner 
NOES:         None 
ABSENT:     None 
ABSTAIN:    None 

8. 2019-2020 COVID End of Year Budget Report 
Muriel Howarth Terrell, Finance Director – Review of budget numbers, request that hiring freeze be lifted in 
order to replace two public works positions and to dispatch positions. 
Clarifying questions from Council, Council discussion. 
Dawn Snure, Dispatch Supervisor – Comments regarding shortage of personnel in dispatch. 
COUNCIL ACTION: Reverse hiring freeze and begin hiring of vacant positions. 
MOTION TO APPROVE: Redmond 
SECOND:    Engstrom 
AYES:          Redmond, Collings, Stackfleth, Engstrom, Wagner 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 5



City of Mt. Shasta Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
Monday September 14, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 

NOES:         None 
ABSENT:     None 
ABSTAIN:    None 

             CITY COUNCIL/STAFF REPORTING PERIOD 

9. Future Agenda Items (Appearing on the agenda within 60-90 days): 
 

COUNCIL ACTION:  Reviewed Items a through j.  Item added for a report regarding the undergrounding of power 
lines and the Lassen Substation project. 
 

a. Update MOU with Mt. Shasta Fire – 9/28/2020 
b. Discussion and Possible Action: Future of the City Library – 9/28/2020 
c. Discussion and Possible Action: Goals and Priorities of the City – 9/28/2020 
d. Discussion and Possible Action: 1220 Mt. Shasta Boulevard Water Meters – 9/28/2020 
e. Golden Eagle Charter School: City Street and Alleyway Abandonment – 10/12/2020 
f. Short-Term Rental Ordinance – 11/2020 
g. Drone Ordinance: First Reading – 11/2020 
h. Crisis Management: City’s Approach - TBD 
i. No Smoking Signage Funding Options - TBD 
j. Presentation by Summit Disposal – TBD 

 
10. Adjourn:  There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:05 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted by: Kathryn M. Joyce, Administrative Assistant/Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 6



 
 

 City Council Agenda Item # 5b 
Staff Report 

 
 
Meeting Date:  September 28, 2020 

To:  Mayor and City Council  

From:  Muriel Howarth Terrell, Finance Director  

Subject:  Approval of Warrants and Payroll 
 
 
Recommendation: 

Staff requests the Mayor and City Council Approve warrants paid including payroll benefits and 
withholding, and payroll distribution, in the amount of $295,625.90. 
 
Background & Summary: 

Approval of Check Numbers 45810-45861    $  194,338.07        

Total Payroll Distribution      $    59,369.38 

Total EFTPS – CalPERS       $    16,598.88   

Total Payroll EFTPS Taxes      $    25,319.57       

            $  295,625.90 

Financial Impact: 

Espenditures are consistent with the Budget that the City Council has adopted.  

 
Attachments: 

1.) Check Registers  - 9/15/20 

2.) ACH Payroll Distribution -    9/10/20 

3.) EFTPS Reports –   9/10/20 

 
 
 

 Regular  
x Consent 
 Closed 
 Presentation 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 7



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 8



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 9



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 10



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 11



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 12



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 13



ORDINANCE CCO-20-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MT. SHASTA 

RESCINDING  
MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 10.45  

REGULATING PARKING VIOLATIONS 
  

WHEREAS, code enforcement is an essential function of all cities in counties to enhance the 
quality of life by ensuring and protecting the health, safety and welfare of all residents and visitors; 
and 

WHEREAS, code enforcement involves the prevention, detection, investigation, and enforcement 
of laws regulating public nuisance, public health, safety, welfare, public works, business activities, 
building standards, land use, and municipal affairs; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Mt. Shasta’s enforcement ordinances were updated July 13, 2020 through 
City Council action including updates to parking violations and ticketing; and   

WHEREAS, the proposed removal of code will remove conflicting code chapter 10.45 and 
improve internal consistency of the municipal code; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed removal has been reviewed for compliance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and is not considered a project under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section § 15378 due to the activity not resulting 
in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Mt. Shasta hereby 
rescinds Chapter 10.45 “Parking Violations” in its entirety and amends all municipal code sections 
which cross-reference Chapter 10.45 to read Chapter 1.03 “Enforcement of Code”.  

The foregoing Ordinance was adopted at the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Mt. 
Shasta held on this 28th day of September 2020 by the following vote: 

AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  

 

DATED:  

 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 14



 

ATTEST:    CITY OF MT. SHASTA 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

 Kathryn M. Joyce, Deputy City Clerk   John Stackfleth, Mayor 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 15



1 
Resolution CCR-20-XX 

RESOLUTION CCR-20-XX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF MT. SHASTA 

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF MT. SHASTA AND TEAMSTERS LOCAL UNION NO. 137 

MISCELLANEOUS BARGAINING UNIT 
FOR THE 2020-2021 FISCAL YEAR 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Mt. Shasta has engaged in negotiations with the Teamsters Local Union 
No. 137 Miscellaneous Bargaining Unit and reached an agreement on a one-year contract; and 
 
WHEREAS, the bargaining unit has indicated its willingness to accept the City’s proposal based 
on Council’s fair and reasonable consideration to include certain additional items of interest to 
the bargaining unit; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mt. Shasta deems it to be in the best interest of the 
City to execute an agreement with Teamsters Local Union No. 137 Miscellaneous bargaining 
unit. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mt. Shasta as 
follows: 
 

1. Effective September 7th 2020 employees will receive an additional $25.00 per year for a 
clothing allowance going from $350.00 per year to $375.00 per year.  
 

2. Effective September 7th 2020 the Wastewater Plant Lead Operator position will be 
increased to the Compensation Study rate ranging from $4703 per month or $27.13 per 
hour at the A level to $5191 per month or $29.95 per hour at the E level. The person 
currently in that position will be paid at the E level with already earned longevity and 
incentive pay. The hourly rates are as follows:  
 

A B C D E 
Waste Plant Lead Operator $27.13 $27.81 $28.51 $29.22 $29.95 
 

3. The City Manager is authorized to execute the Memorandum of Understanding based on 
the terms of the agreement on behalf of the City. 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE: 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   
DATED:  September  28, 2020 
 
 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 16



2 
Resolution CCR-20-XX 

ATTEST:       CITY OF MT. SHASTA 
 
 
              
Kathryn Joyce, Deputy City Clerk    John Stackfleth, Mayor 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 17



RESOLUTION CCR-20-XX 

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL 
OF  THE  CITY  OF  MT.  SHASTA 
APPROVING  ATTACHMENT “A”  

RESOLUTION FOR ACCEPTANCE OF  
TREASURY MANAGEMENT SERVICES  

FROM TRI COUNTIES BANK  

WHEREAS, the City desires to update their agreements with Tri Counties Bank; and 

WHEREAS, Tri Counties Bank has specialized forms requiring Council approval and signatures; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Council authorizes and appoints the Finance Director, Muriel Terrell, to execute 
and deliver acceptance of services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mt. Shasta to 
authorize Attachment “A” for the acceptance of Treasury Management Services from Tri 
Counties Bank. 

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 28th day of September 2020 by the 
following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

DATED: September 28, 2020 

CITY OF MT. SHASTA: 

____________________________ 
ATTEST:  John Stackfleth, Mayor 

_________________________________ 
Kathryn Joyce, Deputy City Clerk 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 18



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 19



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 20



 
 

City Council Agenda Item # 5f 
Staff Report 

 
 
Meeting Date:  September 28, 2020 

To:  Mayor and City Council  

From:  Muriel Howarth Terrell, Director of Finance 

Subject:  Revenue Status Update, Monthly Investment and Financial Report for the 
Period Ending August 31,2020 

 
 
Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully requests the City Council review the provided information regarding the City’s 
investments. 
 
Background & Summary: 

As of August 31, 2020 the combined funds the City of Mt. Shasta had invested in the Local 
Agency Investment Fund (L.A.I.F.) totaled $1,724,601.61. The August  2020 LAIF statement is 
attached,  along with the performance data for the month of August. Most surplus funds over 
which the City has control are currently invested in LAIF. The balance of the City’s cash funds 
are held in the pooled checking account with Tri Counties Bank and the CDBG Fund CD’s held  
with ProEquities. 

Current investment rates are: 

L.A.I.F.     August 31, 2020   0.784%  
Treasury Note – 3 month  August 31, 2020   0.09% 
Treasury Note – 2 Yr.   August 31, 2020   0.13% 
Treasury Note – 5 Yr.   August 31, 2020   0.27% 
Treasury Note – 10 Yr.  August 31, 2020   0.71% 
Treasury Note – 30 Yr.  August 31, 2020   1.48% 
 
Bloomberg as reported by Chandler Asset Management 
 
The LAIF average decreased slightly last month,  all other notes increased slightly over the 
previous month.  We continue to anticipate the LAIF rate staying in a narrow range around 
.75%-1.75% The LAIF yield is higher than the 2 Yr. Note. Short term CD rates are not better than 
the LAIF rate and longer term notes may offer better yields it does not give us the liquidity we 
need. The LAIF rate remains the best available rate that meets the City’s requirement for 
liquidity and safety. 
  

 Regular  
X Consent 
 Closed 
 Presentation 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 21



2 

Revenues: 

Property Tax Revenue: The City will not receive property tax revenue for the current fiscal year 
until December 2020. 

Sales Tax Revenue: 
The sales tax payments received in September for July  was $120,404 which is $100,000 more 
than what was projected back in April/May. The amount collected for July includes an advance 
as calculated by the State using a state-wide projection of a 13% loss over the prior year.  We 
have therefore adjusted the Sales Tax budget for 20-21 to an amount of $1,195,000 an amount 
that is $365,000 higher than the original budget of $830,000. 

Cannabis Revenue: Cannabis revenue through August/ September will not be realized until the 
end of October.  

Transient Occupancy Tax:  
The collecion of the 1st quarter TOT will not be know until the end of October 2020. For the 
entities that report and pay on a monthly basi, the result is a reduction of over 11% as 
compared to the prior year. The adjusted COVID Budget for TOT was $670,000 , we now 
anticipate the total to be approximately $62,000 more or $732,000. This amount still represents 
an overall decrease of TOT over prior years’ results.  

Financial Impact: 

At this point we anticipate being about $427,000 better than the original $250,000 deficit that 
was originally projected. This change wipes out the entire projected deficit, including the 
retroactive payment to fire personnel for stand by pay. We will continue to monitor expenses 
and receipts and report any changes from expected projections. 

The hiring freeze has been lifted by Council and expenses appear to be where we would expect 
them. We would like to wait until at least one full quarter of revenue has been realized before 
making any further decisions related to increasing the budget expenses. 

The investments are in compliance with the City’s investment policy and provide for meeting 
the City’s cash flow needs for the next month and 6 month periods. 

Compliance with 2014-17 City Council Strategic Plan: 

The City Council’s leadership efforts to ensure adherence to the best possible financial practices 
and overall transparency falls under Strategic Focus IV – Grow Mt. Shasta Pride and Quality and 
the Municipal Responsibilities of Progressive Leadership and Financial Health and Economic 
Opportunity. 
Attachments: 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 22



3 

• LAIF Monthly Statement 
• LAIF Performance Report 
• LAIF Monthly Balances 
• Chandler Asset Management September 2020 Newsletter 

 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 23



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 24



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 25



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 26



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 27



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 28



City Council Agenda Item #6 

Meeting Date:  September 28, 2020 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Rod Bryan, Public Works Director 

Subject: 1220 NMSB Residential development 

Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully requests that Council provide direction to staff. 

Background & Summary: 

The project applicant, Paul Lennon has submitted plans for a residential development with an 
ADU on a previously developed lot. The plans were approved on May 4, 2020 with the 
exception of the civil sheets, which are still waiting on revisions by his Engineer. He has 
requested Council consideration of requirements to re-locate water meter boxes. 

The project will require a few public improvements, as is often the case with private 
developments: 

Sidewalk improvements: New construction requires the installation of curb, gutter, and 
sidewalk per §12.04.020. Staff has determined this requirement should be deferred for mutual 
convenience as allowed by City Municipal code §12.04.020(B). 

12.04.020 Curb, gutter and sidewalks – Installation requirements. 

(A) Curb, gutter and sidewalks shall be installed to the specifications set

forth in this chapter at the time of construction of all residential buildings.

Owners of commercial buildings and parking lots shall install curb, gutter

and sidewalk to the specifications set forth in this chapter at the time of

building construction, remodeling or change of occupancy.

(B) The Director of the Department of Public Works may defer the

requirement of the immediate placement of the improvement based upon

the mutual convenience to the City of Mt. Shasta and the landowner. In

the event that such deferment is granted, it shall be granted upon the

X Regular Session 

Special Session 

Emergency Session 

Closed Session 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 29



2 

condition that the estimated cost of the improvement as determined by the 

Department of Public Works shall be placed on deposit with the City of Mt. 

Shasta as a condition of issuance of a building permit and/or business 

license to assure completion of the improvement. (Ord. 393 § 12, 1981) 

Water and Sewer: The property is currently served by water and sewer, therefore the applicant 
will not have to pay new connection capacity fees. City Municipal Code §13.04.180 requires the 
extension of the water main across the entire frontage of the property to be served. Staff 
waived this requirement since it was not likely that the main would not serve any additional 
parcels other than what were already served. This saved the developer at least $50,000. 

13.04.180 Water or sewer main extension. 

If it is necessary to extend the City main water line or City main sewer line for the property 

to be served per MSMC 13.04.100 and 13.04.160, the main water or sewer line shall be 

extended across the total frontage, side or rear line of the property to be served, save and 

except that it can be clearly seen that the main will not serve any other property. A 

reimbursable work order per MSMC 13.04.150 shall be prepared by the City for the 

extension cost of the main line. Only City employees or a licensed contractor, obtained by 

the City, will be allowed to install main line extensions unless otherwise approved in 

advance by the Water Superintendent or Director of Public Works and installed under a 

valid encroachment permit. Full payment for cost of the extension shall be paid by the 

property owner prior to the installation of the main line, except where the property owner 

has signed an agreement with the City Council for other terms of financing the line 

extension. (Ord. CCO-99-05, 1999; Ord. CCO-92-07, 1992; Ord. 428, 1986) 

Presumably, the sewer lateral that serves the property is still in place and connects to a City 
main on N. Mt. Shasta Boulevard. If it is in disrepair, or cannot be located, it will need to be 
fixed or replaced at the cost of the developer.  

A water lateral serves the property from the new main installed with the Big Lakes Project. Prior 
to the Big Lakes Project, this property, (1220 NMSB) as well as 1216 NMSB and 1205 Wertz 
were served from an old 1” main that was abandoned. New connections for the three existing 
lots were installed at the end of the new main that terminated at the end of the alley. The 
water main was not designed as part of the Big Lakes project to extend beyond the end of the 
existing alley noted by the location of a wood fence that crossed the alley. It did not need to be 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 30

https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/MtShasta/#!/MtShasta13/MtShasta1304.html#13.04.100
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/MtShasta/#!/MtShasta13/MtShasta1304.html#13.04.160
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/MtShasta/#!/MtShasta13/MtShasta1304.html#13.04.150


3 

extended since all properties could be served from the end of the new main, and there were no 
properties beyond those that could, or would need to be served in the future. 

Alley Improvements: 
The construction of the ADU on the eastern portion of the property necessitates the 
improvement of the City owned alley for access to the proposed structure. The alley is currently 
overgrown and undeveloped. This is the developer’s responsibility, much like street or sidewalk 
improvements in other cases. This work will consist of tree removal, alley grading and 
resurfacing with gravel, and relocation of existing water meter boxes. The design proposed a 
retaining wall on the East side of the alley, but this will not be required. 

Staff arguments/recommendations: 

The developer is requesting Council reconsideration of staff’s requirement to re-locate the 
meter boxes and ensure the existing laterals have sufficient (minimum 18”) cover after grading. 

• The developer’s project triggers the need for alley improvements.
• Since the alley will be extended and graded, the existing three meter boxes will need to

be re-located from the middle of the alley to a safer location out of the path of travel
and near the property lines of the parcels being served. This will prevent damage and
potential water line breaks from snow removal operations and heavy vehicular traffic.
Therefore, due to the extension of the alley, the boxes need to be relocated.

• Since the alley will be re-graded, sufficient cover must be maintained for the protection
of the water lines. The requirement is that if 18 inches of ground cover cannot be
maintained, the developer must dig a trench and replace the existing laterals at
sufficient depth to provide the minimum cover.

Estimated costs of the requirements: 
• The estimated cost to re-route the three water services is around $3,000-4,000 if the

laterals need to be buried deeper. (A common trench can be used for all water laterals).
If sufficient cover exists, and the meters and boxes need to be re-located only, the
estimated cost might be around $1,000.

Staff’s recommendation is to deny the developer’s request to waive the requirements to re-
locate the existing meter boxes and ensure sufficient depth after grading. 

Attachments: 

1. Plan sheet w/ notes

2. Correspondence letters to developer

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 31



PACE
ENGINEERING
REDDING, CALIFORNIA 8

CONFORMED
RECORD DRAWING
THIS DRAWING REFLECTS AND HAS INCORPORATED CHANGES THAT HAVE BEEN

MADE AFTER THE ISSUANCE OF THE ORIGINAL CONTRACT DRAWING AND HAVE BEEN
PREPARED FROM INFORMATION PROVIDED TO THE ENGINEER.  PACE ENGINEERING,
INC DOES NOT GUARANTEE THIS DRAWING REFLECTS FINAL AS-BUILT CONDITIONS.

DATE
8/17/17

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 32

istripling
Callout
WATER METER LOCATIONS INSTALLED W/ BIG LAKES WATER LINE REPLACEMENT PROJECT

istripling
Callout
WATER METER LOCATION PRIOR TO BIG LAKES WATER LINE REPLACEMENT PROJECT & LOCATION CITY DPW IS ASKING YOU TO MOVE THE METER

istripling
Callout
WATER METER LOCATION PRIOR TO BIG LAKES WATER LINE REPLACEMENT PROJECT & LOCATION CITY DPW IS ASKING YOU TO MOVE THE METER



May 14, 2019 

TO: Paul Lennon 

FROM: City of Mt. Shasta 

SUBJECT: 1220 N Mt. Shasta Blvd – Residential Development with ADU 

This memo serves as a summary of questions and comments posed during pre-application 
meeting held May 14, 2019. The Applicant proposes to develop a single-family residential home 
and garage with an Accessory Dwelling Unit on a vacant property along N Mt. Shasta Blvd. 

Public Works 

The property has a high grade as the front of the lot. Curb, gutter, and sidewalk may be differed. 
Public works Director and PACE Engineer will need the corners of the lot flagged for an 
assessment of the front of the lot. Public Works will confirm the deferment of the requirements 
after assessment. 

A Civil sheet will be required with the Building Permit submission. The Civil sheet will need to 
show the water, sewer, and sidewalk (if applicable). The Sprinkler plans will need to show a 
backflow preventer for Public Works review.  

The alley is not developed to the back of the property. The property owner is responsible for 
moving the water service to their properties, the extension of the alleyway, and any other 
improvements (tree removal, etc.). The water service to the other properties will be handled by 
Public Works.  

Planning 

A site map with the property lines and surrounding road access to the property will need to be 
identified on the site plan.  

The Accessory Dwelling Unit above the garage will need an application for ADU’s for Planning 
review. The main house and garage will need to be constructed prior to the ADU. 

Building 

The plans will need to be stamped by a certified engineer or architect prior to submission. There 
is a question on certified stamp if the plans use conventional framing. Building Department will 
need to follow-up with answer.  

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 33



9/21/2020 Mail - Juliana Lucchesi - Outlook

https://outlook.office365.com/mail/deeplink?version=20200914002.04&popoutv2=1 1/3

Re: 1220 Mt Shasta Blvd.

Paul Lennon <pbldsgn@hotmail.com>
Mon 9/16/2019 6:52 AM
To:  Rod Bryan <rbryan@mtshastaca.gov>
Cc:  Juliana Lucchesi <jlucchesi@mtshastaca.gov>; Bruce Pope <bpope@mtshastaca.gov>

Sounds like Rod and Bruce are going to have a site visit, please let me know when and I’ll try and be
there, it would be nice to come up with a solution that works for everyone.

Paul Lennon
PBL DESIGNS INC.
pbldsgn@hotmail.com
530-941-7155

On Sep 11, 2019, at 9:58 AM, Rod Bryan <rbryan@mtshastaca.gov> wrote:

Paul,
Thank you for your message, attached for reference.

Mainline extension is required per MSMC 13.04.180:

13.04.180 Water or sewer main extension. 
If it is necessary to extend the City main water line or City main sewer line for the property
to be served per MSMC 13.04.100 and 13.04.160, the main water or sewer line shall be
extended across the total frontage, side or rear line of the property to be served, save and
except that it can be clearly seen that the main will not serve any other property. A
reimbursable work order per MSMC 13.04.150 shall be prepared by the City for the
extension cost of the main line. Only City employees or a licensed contractor, obtained by
the City, will be allowed to install main line extensions unless otherwise approved in
advance by the Water Superintendent or Director of Public Works and installed under a
valid encroachment permit. Full payment for cost of the extension shall be paid by the
property owner prior to the installation of the main line, except where the property owner
has signed an agreement with the City Council for other terms of financing the line
extension. (Ord. CCO-99-05, 1999; Ord. CCO-92-07, 1992; Ord. 428, 1986)

Any street or alley improvements required to serve your property, will be your
responsibility.

If you wish to have alley access, you will need to develop the alley. 

Another option might be to not develop the alley, in which case we might be able to leave
it as is with all of the meter boxes and laterals. We could discuss this option.

I do not have the authority to change policy. Please feel free to call Bruce Pope at 926-
7519.

Rod Bryan
City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 34

mailto:pbldsgn@hotmail.com
mailto:rbryan@mtshastaca.gov


9/21/2020 Mail - Juliana Lucchesi - Outlook

https://outlook.office365.com/mail/deeplink?version=20200914002.04&popoutv2=1 2/3

Public Works Director
City of Mt. Shasta
530.926.7526

-----Original Message-----
From: Rod Bryan 
Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 10:14 AM
To: 'Paul Lennon' <pbldsgn@hotmail.com>
Cc: Juliana Lucchesi <jlucchesi@mtshastaca.gov>; Bruce Pope <bpope@mtshastaca.gov>
Subject: RE: 1220 Mt Shasta Blvd.

Paul,
As we explained at the pre-application meeting, you will be required to submit a civil plan
sheet showing the new plan and profile of the alley, grading plan, trees to be removed,
sewer line, etc. and it will need to be surveyed. You will also be required to do a water
main line extension from the termination point of the existing water main, abandon and
cap the existing service connections that need to be moved, and relocate them to the
standard points of connection directly adjacent to the property being served. For those
that will still be beyond the extended main, they will be connected as they currently are,
only at the end of the new main and attached to existing service laterals. See attached
rough sketch.

The water main installation, testing, and disinfection will need to be done in accordance
with AWWA standards, City of Redding Construction standards, and under direct
construction observation by the City Engineer. Once we have the initial plans, we will
collect a deposit from you for the estimated amount to review and correct the plans and
the estimated amount for construction observation. Construction observation is for tasks
such as ensuring it is constructed as planned, to oversee testing of the new main, etc. You
will also be required to do notification to affected property owners. 

We will also prepare a public works work order for any work required by my crew. This will
be added to the deposit amount required. In this case, since you will be doing the main
line extension and related work, I don't think there will be much that we will be doing,
other than the water meter and box, and probably connection of the sewer. You can have
your contractor do the sewer connection as well. For the sewer work, we typically can
provide an approximate depth of the City main if grade might be an issue. In this case, I
don't believe it will be a problem as it will be going out to Old Hwy 99 towards the
boulevard. With this work, there will be connection expenses associated with excavation,
tapping the sewer main, providing the saddle, running a 4" lateral to the property line, and
putting the road back. City of Redding construction standards show all of these details,
including trench backfill and resurfacing requirements. 

All work in the City ROW shall be done under an encroachment permit, which will be
issued after civil plan review and approval. City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 35

mailto:pbldsgn@hotmail.com
mailto:jlucchesi@mtshastaca.gov
mailto:bpope@mtshastaca.gov


9/21/2020 Mail - Juliana Lucchesi - Outlook

https://outlook.office365.com/mail/deeplink?version=20200914002.04&popoutv2=1 3/3

All relevant construction details shall be provided with the Civil plan sheet.

As I recall, sidewalk on the boulevard side of the property will not be required due to
existing topography.

Connection fees for water and sewer will be collected at time of issuance of building
permit. 

Please do not do any ground work in the City right of way until we approve the plans and
can issue an encroachment permit for your contractor to be in the city right of way.

Thanks,

Rod Bryan
Public Works Director
City of Mt. Shasta
530.926.7526

-----Original Message-----
From: Paul Lennon <pbldsgn@hotmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2019 8:13 AM
To: Rod Bryan <rbryan@mtshastaca.gov>
Subject: 1220 Mt Shasta Blvd.

Hi Rod,

I emailed you yesterday about our property at 1220 Mt. Shasta Blvd.  We submitted plans
yesterday and would like to figure out what to do about the trees in the alley and what
the city is going to do about the water meters that are in the middle of the alley.  We
would appreciate you getting back to us on when we can meet and get this resolved.  We
are ready to start doing ground work.  Thank you again.  Paul Lennon
<message.wav>

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 36

mailto:pbldsgn@hotmail.com
mailto:rbryan@mtshastaca.gov


November 18, 2019 

Paul Lennon 

3275 Wilshire Dr. 

Redding, CA 96002 

Subject: 1220 N Mt. Shasta 

Dear Paul Lennon: 

The City of Mt. Shasta has received your most recent building plans related to 1220 N Mt. Shasta Blvd. 
The Building and Public Works Department have determined that the plans are incomplete. The following 
information has not been received by the City: 

• A $1500.00 deposit for City Engineer review of the water line and alleyway extension
• A civil sheet regarding the details of the water line and alleyway extension
• Paperwork regarding the deferral of the curb, gutter, sidewalk requirement

Chapter 12.04 of the Mt. Shasta Municipal Code allows for the deferral of the construction of curb, gutter, 
and sidewalk . Paperwork is required regarding the deferral of the requirements. The paperwork has been 
attached for your convenience. This deferral is only valid until the City of Mt. Shasta determines that curb, 
gutter, and sidewalk is needed in the area. A notification will be sent prior to future requirement.  

Please contact our office with additional questions. 

Sincerely, 

Juliana Lucchesi 
City Planner 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 37



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 38



City Council Agenda Item #7 
Staff Report 

Meeting Date:  September 28, 2020 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: City Manager  

Subject:  City Manager Contract Extension 

Recommendation: 

Staff respectfully request approval of the attached Resolution which would, if approve, extend the 
Term of the City Manager’s Contract to 9-29-22. 

Background & Summary: 

The City of Mt. Shasta entered into an employment agreement with Bruce D. Pope on 
September 29, 2016. That contract was for a period of three (3) years, with an automatic 
renewal for one additional year.  

The initial Term of the Contract is now complete, therefore, to ensure continuation and 
coordination of the important projects before the City, the City Manager is requesting a two (2) 
year extension to the Term of the existing Contract. This requested two (2) year extention to 
the Term of the Contract is the only change being requested. All other conditions of the 
Contract remain unchanged. 

Financial Impact: 

No change in adopted budget; salary remains unchanged at ninety-six thousand dollars per 
year. 

Attachments: 

Existing Contract 

Resolution approving extension of Employment Contract 

x Regular 
Consent 
Closed 
Presentation 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 39



2 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

    
 
 
 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 40



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 41



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 42



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 43



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 44



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 45



City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 46



 
RESOLUTION CCR-20-XX 

  
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF MT. SHASTA  
EXTENDING THE TERM OF THE EXISTING  

CITY MANAGER EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT TO SEPTEMBER 29, 2022. 
 
 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Mt. Shasta entered into an Employment Agreement 
with Mr. Pope on September 29, 2016 for a Term of Four (4) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Mt. Shasta now desires to extend the Term of said 
contract for an additional period of Two (2) years; and 
  
WHEREAS; The City Attorney of the City of Mt. Shasta has reviewed the recommended 
changes in the Term of the existing Contract and concurs in the proposed process.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Mt. Shasta 
hereby authorizes and directs the Mayor to sign the proposed extension agreement. 
 
 
The foregoing Resolution was approved this 28th day of September 2020 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:   
 
DATED: September 28, 2020 
 
 
ATTEST:    CITY OF MT. SHASTA 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 

 Kathryn M. Joyce, Deputy City Clerk    John Stackfleth, Mayor 
 

 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 47



CITY MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

AMENDED TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 

 

This Document is intended to memorialize the agreed upon amendment to the City Manager’s 
Employment Contract for Bruce D. Pope, first entered between Mr. Pope and the City of Mt. Shasta on 
September 29,2016.  

The agreement, when executed, amends the existing Term of the City Manager’s Contract from 
September 29, 2020 to a new Term of Contract date of September 29, 2022. 

 

 

Executed this ___________day of ____________2020.  

By: 

Bruce D. Pope       John Stackfleth 

City Manager       Mayor     

_____________________            _________________________ 

____________________ Date     ________________________ Date                    

 

City Council Regular Meeting September 28, 2020 48


	9.28.2020 DRAFT Agenda
	9.9.2020 DRAFT Minutes
	9.14.2020 DRAFT Minutes
	Staff Report expenses 09 28 20
	expense support 9 28 20
	CCO-20-XX Removal_Ch10.45
	CCR-20-XX Miscellaneous MOU approval 2021
	Reso TCB Treasury Management Services
	Tri Counties Bank Resolution
	Staff Report monthly investment 92820
	Investment Support 9 28 20
	1220 NMSB_Lennon development.SR
	12.04.020 Curb, gutter and sidewalks – Installation requirements.
	13.04.180 Water or sewer main extension.

	Big Lakes Water Line Replacement Project 8
	5.14.2019 Preappmemo
	9.16.2019_Lennon_Bryan_Corres.
	11.18.2019 Inc Ltr
	2.27.2020 Lennon Inc. Ltr
	City Manager Contract Extension
	City Manager's Contract
	City Manager Contract Extension Res.
	AMMENDED TERM OF AGREEMENT



